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June 11, 2008.  Therefore, the civil penalty amount is reduced to reflect that Bridger failed to 
review its O&M Manual from February 2005 until June 2007.  Accordingly, having reviewed the 
record and considered the assessment criteria, I assess Respondent a reduced civil penalty of 
$28,800 for violation of 49 C.F.R. § 195.402(a). 
 
Item 7:  The Notice proposed a civil penalty of $35,000 for Respondent’s violation of  
49 C.F.R. § 195.402(e)(9), for failing to demonstrate that it had provided for a post-accident 
review of employee activities to determine whether the company’s procedures were effective in 
each emergency, and had taken corrective action where deficiencies were found.  Bridger argued 
that the civil penalty should be eliminated based on the evidence of compliance and because it 
has no previous citation for violation of this regulation.  
 
I have considered the arguments and assertions by Bridger.  With respect to culpability, pipeline 
operators are well aware of their obligation to provide for post-accident review of employee 
activities.  Bridger did not comply with its own O&M procedures to conduct post-accident 
reviews within 45 days after the accident is no longer an emergency.  With respect to the gravity 
of the violation, it is essential that operators provide for post-accident reviews because a number 
of threats to a pipeline’s integrity can go undetected if post-accident reviews are not conducted in 
a timely fashion, such as the presence of improperly trained personnel, the existence of defective 
equipment, and the use of inadequate procedures.  In general, Bridger has a poor compliance 
history.27  Applying lessons learned from accidents is an important part of preventing similar 
accidents from occurring in the future.  The failure to document post-accident reviews reduces 
the chance that deficiencies will be identified and corrective action taken.  Respondent has 
provided no information that would warrant a reduction in the civil penalty amount proposed in 
the Notice for this Item.  Accordingly, having reviewed the record and considered the assessment 
criteria, I assess Respondent a civil penalty of $35,000 for violating 49 C.F.R. § 195.402(e)(9). 
 
Payment of the civil penalty must be made within 20 days of service.  Federal regulations  
(49 C.F.R. § 89.21(b)(3)) require such payment to be made by wire transfer through the Federal 
Reserve Communications System (Fedwire), to the account of the U.S. Treasury.  Detailed 
instructions are contained in the enclosure.  Questions concerning wire transfers should be 
directed to: Financial Operations Division (AMZ-341), Federal Aviation Administration, Mike 
Monroney Aeronautical Center, P.O. Box 269039, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73125.  The 
Financial Operations Division telephone number is (405) 954-8893.  
 
Failure to pay the $63,800 civil penalty will result in accrual of interest at the current annual rate 
in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 3717, 31 C.F.R. § 901.9 and 49 C.F.R. § 89.23.  Pursuant to 
those same authorities, a late penalty charge of six percent (6%) per annum will be charged if 
payment is not made within 110 days of service.  Furthermore, failure to pay the civil penalty 
may result in referral of the matter to the Attorney General for appropriate action in a district 
court of the United States.   

 
 

                                                 
27  In the Matter of Bridger Pipeline, LLC, Final Order, dated January 9, 2007, CPF No. 5-2005-5017; In the Matter 
of Bridger Pipeline, LLC, Final Order, dated February 16, 2006, CPF No. 3-2005-5036; In the Matter of Bridger 
Pipeline, LLC, Final Order, dated April 2, 2009, CPF No. 5-2007-5003; In the Matter of Bridger Pipeline, LLC, 
Decision on Petition for Reconsideration, dated June 16, 2009, CPF No. 5-2007-5003.  






